IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

JEFFREY EARL EVANS Defendant/Appellant

MAR 23 2007

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
SUPREME COURT
SUPREME APPEALS

Vs.

STATE OF Mississi PPi Plaintiff / Appellee

On Appeal from the Circuit Court of Itawamba County before the Honorable Thomas Gardner. III., Circuit Judge.

The State of Mississippi Cause No. CVob-111(G) I

Brief of Appellant

Jeffrey Earl Evans Pro se Appellant Unit 26-A. E-277 Parchman. Ms. 38738

Statement of the Issues

- The Trial Court erred in relying on talse documents.
- The Trial Court erred in dismissing Petitioner's Post Conviction Petition in lieu of granting an evidentiary hearing to hear assignments on the Merits."
- in Indictment Cause Number CRO4-034(G)I. or sentencing Orders to Justify enhancement pursuant to MCA 99-19-81 as alleged There Were no Judgements of Convictions

Statement of the Case

This appeal is Currently before the Court of Appeals for the State of Mississippi upon Order dismissing Appellant's Petition for Post Conviction Collateral Relief filed January 26, 2007 and Subsequent notice of Appeal filed February 16, 2007.

Jeffrey Earl Evans. Was indicted by the Grand Jury of Itawamba County, Mississippi, July 2004 Vacation Term. On One Count. Mamely, Grand Larceny (Motor Vechicle) in Violation of MCA 97-17-42(1)

Jeffrey Earl Evans. Was Convicted by entry of a Guilty plea on advice of Counsel on September 9. 2004 and Sentenced that Same day to Serve a term of 5 years in the Mississippi Department of Corrections pursuant to MCA 99-19-81 Without the possibility of reduction of Sentence, parole. etc.

1-of-3

Statement of the Case

The Appellant was Ordered to pay tines and Court Cost in the amount of 10.000,00 dollars with 8.000,00 Suspended and 271-00 Court Cost for a total of 2.271.00 Within 30 days of his release.

On September 8. 2006 the Appellant filed a timely petition for Post Conviction Collateral Relief Stating grounds as follows:

- 1. Violation of 5th Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article 3. Section 14 of the Mississippi State Constitution. I've been deprived of life and Liberty without due process of Law.
- 2. Violation of 8th Amendment of the United States Constitution and Article 3, Section 28 of the Mississippi State Constitution-Im Suffering Cruel and Unusual punishment due to an illegal Sentence -2- of-3

Statement of the Case

3. Violation of 14th Amendment of the United States Constitution.

It's my fundamental right to be free from an illegal Sentence.

This Appeal is Currently before the Court.

Statement of the Facts

Dn the 16th day of May 2004, Jeffrey Earl Evans Was arrested by the Fulton Police and Charged With Grand Larceny (Motor Vechicle) in Violation of MCA 97-17-42(1).

On the 9th day of September 2004, this Cause Came to be heard by the Itawamba County Circuit Court, the Honorable Thomas Gardner # presiding, in the form of an entry of quilt by the Appellant in Open Court.

The Appellant was Convicted of the Crime of Grand Larceny (Motor Vechicle) the Same day by Way of a guilty plea.

On the 9th day of September 2004, Judgement of Conviction was entered and the Appellant Was Sentenced by Sentencing Order to Serve a term of 5 years in the M.D.D.C. pursuant to MCA 99-19-81. Appellant was Ordered to Pay fines in the amount of \$10.000.00 With \$8.000.00 Suspended and \$271.00 Court Cost for a total of \$2.271.00 Within 30 days of release.

1-0f-2

Statement of Facts Cont.

On September 8. 2006, the Appellant filed for Post Conviction Collateral Relief in the Circuit Court of Itawamba County, Ms. This Came to be Known as Jeffrey Earl Evans Vs. State of Mississippi, Cause No. CVOb-111(G)I.

On January 26. 2007 an Order dismissing the Appellant's Petition for Post Conviction Collateral Relief by the Honorable Thomas Gardner III in the Circuit Court of Itawamba County.

On February 16, 2007, the Appellant filed notice of Appeal in this Cause and initiated the Appeal in this process against the Order to dismiss entered by the Itawamba Circuit Court on January 26, 2007.

Summary of the Argument

The indictment is fatally defective in Charging the Conviction of a Second offense. Whereas, there are no Judgements of Convictions or Sentencing Orders on any date alleged in the indictment.

There are two 121 Statements from the Itawamba County Circuit Clerk Stating: "There are no Judgements of Convictions or Sentencing Orders on either alleged date.

The Trial Court erred in dismissing Appellant's Post-Conviction Petition Without granting the Appellant an evidentiary hearing When an applicable Question of law was raised.

In the Order dismissing Appellant's Post-Conviction Petition. The Trial Court Cited the Wrong Indictment and for Cause No. CR98-151. Which has nothing to do with the Case at bar.

The Petitioner in this Cause Was never formally indicted as a Habitual Offender and the Circuit Court erred in enhancing the Petitioner's Sentence as a 99-19-81 Habitual Offender. The Trial Court erred in dismissing Petitioner's Post-Conviction Petition Without granting an evidentary hearing On this Assignment of Error.

Applicable Law. Standard of Review Mississippi Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice. Rule 11.03.1 States:

The indictment must include both the principal Charge and a Charge of previous Convictions. The indictment Must allege With particularity the nature or description of the Offense Constituting the previous Convictions, the State or federal Lurisdiction of any previous Conviction, and the date of Judgement.

Applicable Law. Standard of Review

It is necessary in an indictment not Dnly to Charge the previous Convictions but also make proof thereof in Order to fit the Case Within a Statute on habitual Offenders. Branning vs. State 224 So. 2d 579

Applicable Law. Standard of Review
Whereas the Court found that "As for Sentencing the Appellant Court found that it was Constrained to Note Plain error in the Habitual Offender Charge". The Court Went on to further Stipulate, "We Cannot leave this aspect of the Case, however, Without further observing the long Standing admonition of the Supreme Court Warning against the tendency to toutinely allow the State to produce Some documentation of prior offenses and for the Trial Court to perfunctorily find the defendant a Habitual Offender."

Jerry Vince Vs. State of Mississippi 2001-KA-01376-COA

Applicable Law. Standard of Review
The decisions of the Mississippi Supreme Court Construing Statutes authorizing enhanced punishment for Second or Subsequent Offences permit trial on the principal Charge and the Charge of Previous Convictions in a Single Proceeding, although the issues involved are essentially independent of each Other. Under Mississippi practice, if enhanced punishment is Sought, the indictment or affidavit Must include both the Principal Charge and a Charge of Previous Convictions and both Charges Proved before punishment May be enhanced.

John Lay Vs. State of Mississippi 310 So. 2d 908

Applicable Law. Standard of Review Convictions obtained only by Verdict or guilty plea- no punishment without legal Conviction. Miss. Code Ann. 99-19-3

Applicable Law. Standard of Review The Court held that an indictment was defective in Charging the Conviction of a Second oftense in order to fit under MCA 99-19-81 (Supp. 1980) (Mississippi) in that the indictment Merely recited that the inmate was Convicted of another felony. The Court held that the indictment did not Meet the requirements of 99-19-81 because the indictment did not State, inter alia, a Court in Which the inmate was Convicted, the date of Judgement, or the nature or the description of the Offense for Which he Was Convicted. The Trial Court did not sentence the inmate as a habitual offender because the indictment did not meet the requirements of 99-19-81.

Billy Ard vs. State of Mississippi 403 so. 2d 875
The Trial Court erred in not determining through Clear
and Convincing proof that the Petitioner in the instant
Cause Was in fact a 99-19-81 habitual Offender.

The Petitioner has reduested all documentation in the Court file pertaining to this Cause and has found no documentation to Support the 99-19-81 Habitual Status.

The Court Went on in "Vince" that We have regularly upheld Sentences Under the habitual Criminal Statues Where the proof of prior Convictions Was Made by Certified Copies of the Judgements of Convictions. This accords with the basic principle that the best evidence of a Conviction is the Judgement of Conviction.

Supporting this ruling the Court Cited McIlwain Vs. State 700 So. 2d 586, 589 Whereas it Was Stated "A prosecuting attorney intent on proving prior Convictions, Would do Well to heed this Simple and Straightforward advice from the Mississippi Supreme Court rather than needlessly testing

the limits of the rules of evidence by attempting to Make do with increasingly remote and less reliable Methods of proof."

The Itawamba County Circuit Clerk Stated. that She has no Sentencing Orders or any Judgements of Convictions on either date alleged in the indictment, Cause No. CRO4-D34(G).I.

The Petitioner now asserts through this assignment of error that there was not a proper foundation for the Trial Court to Sentence the Petitioner as a Habitual and no procedural Substitution for Mississippi Law was fulfilled.

Petitioner's Sentence Must be Stripped of it's enhanced Status.

Conclusion

The Supreme Court of Mississippi held in Smith vs. State 1477 So. 2d 191: 1985) that "Post -Conviction relief in Mississippi is not granted upon facts and issues which Could or Should have been litigated at trial and on appeal. Post Conviction proceedings are for the purpose of bringing to the trial Court's attention facts not known at the time of Judgement. Questions not alleged and raised at trial and / or on direct appeal are procedurally barred and may not be litigated Collaterally in a Post-Conviction environment. However, errors affecting fundamental rights are exceptions to the rule that questions not raised in the trial Court Cannot be raised for the first time on appeal. Citizens May not be deprived of Constitutional rights Without due process of law and that due process requires reasonable advance notice and a Meaningful opportunity to be heard." This is precisely the Subject Matter of the instant petition. The prosecution erred in not indicting the petitioner Correctly.

1-0f-3

Conclusion

The trial Court Compounded the industice by allowing the prosecution to proceed Without adequately fulfilling the prosecutorial duties by Meeting the Criteria Dutlined in Mississippi Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice 11.03.1.

The Petitioner Would respectfully request this Honorable Court to review Original Post -Conviction Petition (indictment) and Court tiles and Strip the Petitioner's enhanced Status from his Sentence With the Vigilance the Mississippi Supreme Court displayed in Wilson Vs. State (248 So. 2d 802) Where they declared. Disregard of the fundamental right in the guiltiest defendant, his Conviction in Violation of Settled Constitutional and legal Safeguards. Which are intended for the protection of all is not Something that affects the particular defendant in a given Case alone but in its disastrous and far reaching Consequences involves future trials, the innocent and the guilty alike. Subverts Justice, and disorganizes Society.