IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

JEFFREY EARL EVANS

APPELLANT

VS.

FILED

NO. 2007-CP-0295

NOV 2 6 2007

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JOHN R. HENRY

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal against an Order of the Circuit Court of Itawamba County, Mississippi in which relief on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief was denied.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The prisoner was indicted for having stolen a pick up truck belong to the Fulton Grain Company. Inasmuch as the prisoner had been previously convicted of other felonies, he was further noticed of the State's intention to have him sentenced as an habitual offender upon conviction of the theft. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 17 - 18).

On 9 September 2004 the prisoner entered a plea of guilty to the theft of the truck. He also admitted that he had been convicted of the felonies set out in the indictment upon which the State intended to rely to support sentencing as an habitual offender. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 23 - 36)

The prisoner then filed, on 8 September 2006, a motion in post - conviction relief. In this motion, he alleged that his sentence was not authorized by law. The basis for this claim was that

there were no certified copies of the judgments of conviction in support of the allegations of the indictment as they pertained to the prisoner's status as an habitual offender. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 3 - 8). Relief on this motion was denied by the Circuit Court, without an evidentiary hearing, on 30 January 2007. The prisoner filed his notice of appeal on 16 February 2007. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 37 - 38).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF

ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF

The State of Mississippi did not seek to admit certified copies of the records of the prisoner's prior convictions in the course of the plea colloquy. It did not do so because the prisoner admitted the existence of the prior convictions, as alleged in the indictment, under oath.

(R. Vol. 1, pp. 26; 30 - 31).

It is well established that an accused's in - court admissions as to the existence of prior felony convictions are a sufficient basis for sentencing under the habitual offender statutes.

Sanders v. State, 786 So.2d 1078, 1082 and cases cited therein (Miss. Ct. App. 2001). The Appellant, by admitting the existence of the prior convictions, waived the burden on the State to prove his status as an habitual offender, just as he waived the State's burden to establish the elements of the principal charge of the indictment. The Circuit Court did not rely upon "false"

documents," as claimed by the prisoner; it relied on the prisoner's admissions. These admissions are not set to be false.

The indictment was not defective. It properly alleged the principal charge as well as the two prior convictions upon which the State intended to seek sentencing under Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-19-81.

The prisoner appears to claim that there were no records in the Circuit Court clerk's office to support the allegations of the prior felonies as those allegations pertained to the dates of the convictions. (Brief for the prisoner at 6).

First of all, assuming for argument that the prisoner is correct – that is, that the convictions did not occur on the dates alleged in the indictment –, this complaint is waived because he stated under oath that he had been convicted of the felonies. Beyond this, any mistake in the indictment concerning the dates of the prior convictions would not be a jurisdictional defect. Indictments may be amended on motion of the prosecution to amend errors regarding prior convictions, or even to add a charge of habitual offender status. URCCC 7.09 Because indictments may be amended for such purposes on motion by the prosecution, any error in the allegations concerning the prior convictions cannot be jurisdictional defects.

Secondly, the prisoner's motion in the Circuit Court did not include any kind of affidavit by the circuit clerk to the effect that there were no judgment of conviction in his office concerning the prior convictions alleged in the indictment. The prisoner points to a hand - written notation on a letter the prisoner sent to a Miss Gates to the effect that this Miss Gates did not find any sentence ordered on 29 July 2002. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 12). One simply has no idea if this Miss Gates wrote this. This said - to - be statement by Miss Gates is entirely insufficient to require an evidentiary hearing on the prisoner's claim, a claim which, essentially, appears to be

that at least one conviction does not exist.

It should also be noted that the letter onto which Miss Gates supposedly responded asked only whether her files showed a sentencing order on 29 July 2002. The clerk's office may not have filed a sentencing order on that date. That, though, would not mean that the prisoner was not sentenced on that day.

It is quite common for a Circuit Court to reduce its orders made from the bench to writing at a later time. It is not uncommon to see a difference between the date a judge signed a written order and the date the order was filed. One example of this would be the dates on the Order denying relief on the post - conviction motion in the case at bar. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 37). The prisoner may well have been sentenced on the date indicated in the indictment, yet the written orders concerning such sentencing might well not have been filed to some time thereafter. The prisoner's request was for a sentencing order or judgment for 29 July 2002. Yet, what he should have requested was the sentencing order in the cause number, without specifying a particular date. The clerk's office might well have failed to find an order filed on that date, but might have found an order filed on a different date memorializing an action taken by the Circuit Court on 29 July 2002. Its records would be keyed to the date of filing.

In any event, this cryptic comment said to have been written by Miss Gates, if indeed it was written by her was, as we have said, entirely insufficient to require an evidentiary hearing. The prisoner provided nothing in his filing which would qualify as a statement by the circuit clerk's office to the effect that there was no record of his having been sentenced on the day alleged in the indictment.

A Circuit Court may deny relief on a motion in post - conviction relief without an evidentiary hearing where "... it plainly appears from the face of the motion, any annexed

exhibits and the prior proceedings in the case that the movant is not entitled to any relief." Miss.

Code Ann. Section 99-39-11(2) (Rev. 2007). This Court will not disturb a Circuit Court's

decision to deny relief absent a showing that the decision was clearly erroneous. Epps v. State,

926 So.2d 242 (Miss. Ct. App. 2005). Here, the prisoner has wholly failed to show error, much

less clear error, in the decision by the Circuit Court to deny him post - conviction relief. This

Court should affirm the Circuit Court's action in this regard.

CONCLUSION

The Order of the Circuit Court denying relief in post - conviction relief should be

affirmed.

The simple fact is that the prisoner admitted under oath the existence of these prior

convictions. This admission was itself sufficient to permit an habitual offender sentence to be

imposed. The prisoner may not now be heard to claim that his sentence was not supported by

evidence. He provided the evidence and waived the State's burden to proved the allegations of

the habitual sentence portion of the indictment.